

Parkland Regional Library System

# PRL Board Meeting Minutes November 12, 2020

The regular meeting of the Parkland Regional Library System Board was called to order at 10:05 a.m. on Thursday November 12, 2020 in the Small Board Room, Lacombe.

Present: Debra Smith (Board Chair), Gord Lawlor

Present via Zoom: Jason Alderson, Jackie Almberg, Glen Carrit, Lana Curle (Alternate for Rick Pankiw), Colleen Ebden, Kevin Ferguson, Jeanny Fisher, Elaine Fossen, Dwayne Fulton, Bruce Gartside, Barb Gilliat, Jeanette Herle, Agnes Hoveland, Cora Knutson, Stephen Levy, Daryl Lougheed, Josephine McKenzie, Philip Massier, Ricci Matthews, Leah Nelson, Ray Olfert, Terilyn Paulgaard, Jas Payne, Norma Penney, Rosella Peterman, Bill Rock, Heather Ryan, Sharolyn Sanchez (Alternate for Mike Yargeau), Janine Stannard, Les Stulberg, Patricia Toone, Cindy Trautman, Doug Weir, Shannon Wilcox, Bill Windsor, Mary Ann Wold, Bonita Wood, Mike Yargeau, Ann Zacharias

With Regrets: Dana Kreil, Blair Morton

- Absent: Alison Barker-Jevne, Doreen Blumhagen, Bill Chandler, Amanda Derksen, Sandy Gamble, Clark German, Deborah Juch, Trudy Kilner, Lonnie Kozlinski, Heidi Pierce, Sonia Temple, Sharon Williamson,
- Staff: Ron Sheppard, Donna Williams, Colleen Schalm, Kara Hamilton, Haley Amendt

# **Call to Order**

Meeting called to order at 10:05 a.m. by Smith.

According to section 31 (1) of the Alberta Libraries Act,

Board member disqualification: 31(1) A person is disqualified from remaining a member of a board if the person fails to attend, without being authorized by a resolution of the board to do so, 3 consecutive regular meetings of the board.

As part of PRLS' compliance procedures, board members who send regrets are excused at the start of each meeting.

Motion by Cindy Trautman to excuse Dana Kreil and Blair Morton from attendance at the board meeting on November 12, 2020 and remain members of the Parkland Board in good standing.

CARRIED PRLS 33/2020

#### 1.1 Agenda

## 1.1.2 Adoption of the Agenda

Motion by Heather Ryan to accept the agenda as presented.

CARRIED PRLS 34/2020

### **1.2.** Approval of Minutes

Smith asked if there were any amendments to the September 17, 2020 minutes. She noted that under Item 1.2, that the minutes were stated as September 17, 2020 and should be changed to May 28, 2020. Agnes Hoveland noted that she was at the May meeting and the minutes indicated otherwise.

Motion by Bruce Gartside to approve the minutes of the September 17, 2020 meeting as amended.

CARRIED PRLS 35/2020

# **1.3.** Business arising from the minutes of September 17, 2020 meeting

Smith asked if there was any business arising from the minutes. There was none.

#### 2.5. Business Arising from the Consent Agenda

Smith asked if there was any business arising from the consent agenda. Philip Massier requested to discuss the letter of correspondence from Stettler County. It was moved from Item 2.3.2. to Item 3.2.a just before the Election of the Executive Committee, which became 3.2.b.

Motion by Jason Alderson to approve the consent agenda as amended.

CARRIED PRLS 36/2020

Sharolyn Sanchez entered the meeting at 10:12 a.m. Cora Knutson entered the meeting at 10:16 a.m.

#### 3.1. Election of Board Chair

Each year at Parkland's November board meeting, the board chairperson is elected for a twelvemonth term.

Smith turned the meeting over to Sheppard, who asked for nominations from the floor for the position of Board Chair. Janine Stannard nominated Debra Smith. Sheppard asked for other nominations a second time, and asked a third time for nominations.

Motion by Coleen Ebden that nominations cease.

CARRIED PRLS 37/2020

Smith became the Board Chair by acclimation. Smith accepted the position and resumed the duty of Chair.

Leah Nelson entered the meeting at 10:32 a.m.

## 3.2. a Letter Regarding Stettler Library Board

Philip Massier inquired whether having the newly appointed Stettler Intermunicipal Board would affect the population of the seats on the Executive Committee, as the Town of Stettler and Stettler County are divided into different seats, seats 6 and 8, respectively. It was explained that the municipalities themselves are members, so it does not affect appointment to the Executive Committee. Both Board Representatives, Gord Lawlor (Town of Stettler) and Les Stulberg (Stettler County) were content with the current division of the population for the seats of the Executive Committee and did not want to see a change.

# **3.2. b** Election of the Executive Committee

PRLS' Executive Committee has the ten-member maximum allowed by the Libraries Regulation. The Board Chair accounts for one seat on the committee. In accordance with Parkland's master agreement with the municipalities, members of the Executive Committee shall be selected on a geographical basis. Such selection shall be made by PRL Board members representing that geographical area.

Members were divided into "breakout rooms" on Zoom and a representative was chosen from each area. The Executive Committee was appointed as follows:

Board Chair	Debra Smith – Village of Lougheed
Seat 2	Cindy Trautman – Camrose County
Seat 3	Philip Massier – Red Deer County
Seat 4	Jason Alderson – Town of Rocky Mtn. House
Seat 5	Kevin Ferguson – Town of Ponoka
Seat 6	Bruce Gartside – Village of Donalda
Seat 7	No Representative
Seat 8	Janine Stannard – Town of Coronation
Seat 9	Heather Ryan – Town of Olds
Seat 10	Jas Payne – Town of Sylvan Lake

Motion by Dwayne Fulton to accept the Executive Committee as appointed.

CARRIED PRLS 38/2020

#### 3.3. Advocacy Committee Report

Gord Lawlor, the current Chair of the Advocacy Committee, gave a verbal report to the board. He named the current volunteers from the Advocacy Committee, who all put their names forward to continue on the committee for another year. He talked about the meaning of being a library advocate and some of what the Advocacy Committee had accomplished in the last year.

The newest advocacy tools from the committee include key messages, examples of supporting data, and sample elevator speeches. The committee has also settled on 3 regional key messages that they recommend board members adopt and use when talking about the library.

- 1. The library is a wise investment. We provide a very good financial return on investment.
- 2. The library supports the financial well-being of all citizens.
- 3. The library provides an important point of social connection that supports mental health.

The Advocacy Committee has also provided a dozen elevator speeches demonstrating how to deliver a key message with supporting facts in about 30 seconds. These examples will be posted on Parkland Library's Support Site.

## 3.4. Election of Advocacy Committee

The current Advocacy Committee working group members are:

Gord Lawlor, Chair – Town of Stettler Norma Penney, Vice Chair – Village of Clive Barb Gilliat – Village of Alix Bill Rock – Village of Amisk Cora Knutson – Town of Bentley Deb Smith, Ex Officio – Village of Lougheed Janine Stannard – Town of Coronation Jeanny Fisher – Town of Daysland Shannon Wilcox – Town of Carstairs Stephen Levy – Town of Sedgewick

Lawlor called for volunteers for the Advocacy Committee; there were no additional volunteers.

Motion by Bruce Gartside to appoint Gord Lawlor, Barb Gilliat, Jeanny Fisher, Cora Knutson, Stephen Levy, Norma Penney, Bill Rock, Deb Smith, Janine Stannard, and Shannon Wilcox to the Advocacy Committee for the next year.

> CARRIED PRLS 39/2020

Barb Gilliat entered the meeting at 10:39 a.m.

#### 3.5. Board Signing Authorities

Parkland Regional Library System requires that two trustees act as cheque signing authorities for cheques valued at \$45,000 or more, or, if the Director is unavailable to sign. It is most convenient if the Board signing authorities live or work close to PRLS headquarters.

Smith asked for two board members that live close to Parkland to volunteer be signing authorities.

Ray Olfert entered the meeting at 10:44 a.m.

Motion by Colleen Ebden to accept Barb Gilliat and Ray Olfert as PRLS' board signing authorities.

CARRIED PRLS 40/2020

Motion by Janine Stannard to add Ray Olfert from the Town of Blackfalds to the Executive Committee Seat 7.

CARRIED PRLS 41/2020

# 3.6. ALTA Board Alternate for Parkland

The Alberta Library Trustee Association (ALTA) board represents the trustees from all ALTA member libraries in the province of Alberta.

In addition to the President, and Past President, the board consists of 10 Directors. Currently, the Parkland Region is represented by Bob Green from the Carstairs Municipal Library. At present they are looking for an Alternate Director from the region.

Bill Windsor from the Town of Didsbury volunteered to let his name stand to be an Alternate Director representing the Parkland Region on the ALTA Board. Parkland will submit his name to ALTA for consideration. There were no other volunteers.

# 3.7. 2021 Alberta Library Conference

In the normal course of events, Parkland pays for three trustees, plus the Board Chair to attend the Alberta Library Conference. However, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the conference has been cancelled for 2021.

# 3.8. Budget Approval Update

Smith shared that the 2021 Parkland budget has been approved by 68.75% of the municipalities representing 71.84% of the population. It was asked that staff share the exact details of the individual responses, which will be emailed to the Parkland board and the municipal administrators within the next week.

# 3.9. Review of PRLS Investments

According to Parkland's Annual Agenda policy, the Executive Committee is to review Parkland's investments at least twice a year. The meetings for the review of investments in 2020 occur in March and October.

In past years, Parkland only invested its funds in GICs and in a conservative, managed bond portfolio. RBC Wealth Management, Dominion Securities, is the company managing Parkland's investment account. Our investor, Adam Lamb, reported that Parkland's investments are up by 6% since the beginning of the year despite COVID-19 and a weak economy. This is due to PRLS' 10-year bond portfolio having higher interest rates than what has been available during the year.

At the October 8<sup>th</sup> Executive Committee meeting, staff did not recommend changing Parkland's overall investment strategy of keeping funds in a conservative, managed bond portfolio. Also, PRLS does not currently have funds invested in GICs. The Executive Committee decided to leave Parkland's investment strategy unchanged.

Motion by Ray Olfert to receive for information

CARRIED PRLS 42/2020

# 3.10. Dates for 2021 Meetings

At present, Parkland is planning on holding board meetings virtually for 2021. Below are the suggested dates for PRLS' 2021 Board meetings.

February 25, 2021	10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. (Annual Report, Year in Review)
May 20, 2021	10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. (2019 Financial Statements presented)
September 16, 2021	10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. (Budget presentation for 2021)
November 18, 2021	10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. (Organizational Meeting)

Motion by Janine Stannard to receive for information.

CARRIED PRLS 43/2020

## 3.11.1. Director's Report

# 3.11.2. Library Services Report

3.11.3. IT Report

# 3.11.4. Finance and Operations Report

Smith asked if there were any questions regarding the Director's, Library Services, IT, or the Finance and Operations reports. There was none.

Motion by Barb Gilliat to receive the Director's, Library Services, IT and Finance and Operations reports for information.

CARRIED PRLS 44/2020

# 3.12. Parkland Community Update

Stettler Public Library is holding a "Christmas Wine Survivor Raffle" virtual elimination draw at the beginning of December. Cost to join is \$20 per ticket plus a bottle of wine.

## 4. Adjournment

Motion by Barb Gilliat to adjourn the meeting at 11:02 a.m.

CARRIED PRL 45/2020

Meeting adjourned at 11:02 a.m.

Chair